
Welcome to tonight’s City Council meeting! 
 

The elected officials of the City of Bonners Ferry appreciate an involved constituency. Testimony from the public 
is encouraged for items listed under the Public Hearing portion of the agenda. Any individual may address the 

council on any issue, whether on the agenda or not, during the Public Comments period. Individuals addressing 
the Mayor and Council during Public Comment should refrain from using that time to address the performance of 
or to make complaints about a specific employee. Public participation during the business portion of the meeting 
will generally not be allowed, with the discretion left to the Mayor and Council. Special accommodation to see, 

hear, or participate in the public meeting should be made at City Hall within two days of the public meeting. 
 

Vision Statement 
Bonners Ferry, “The Friendliest City”, strives to achieve balanced growth, builds on community strengths, 
respects natural resources, promotes excellence in Government, and values quality of life. We are a city that 
welcomes all people. 

AGENDA 
 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Bonners Ferry City Hall 
7232 Main Street 

267-3105 
March 5, 2024 

6:00 pm 
 

Join video Zoom meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/176727634 
Meeting ID: 176727634 
Join by phone: 253-215-8782 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Each speaker will be allowed a maximum of three minutes, unless repeat testimony is requested by the 
Mayor/Council. 
 
REPORTS 
Police/Fire/City Administrator/City Engineer/Urban Renewal District/SPOT/Golf/EDC 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – {action item} 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
2. Approval of Bills and Payroll 
3. Approve Minutes from 02/20/24 Regular Council Meeting and 02/22/24 Special Council Meeting. 
4. Consider approving the contract period extension with HDR Relicensing to 12/31/24. 
5. Consider authorizing the mayor to sign a cover letter for CDBG addendum. 

 
 
  

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
6. URA-(action item) [attachment]- Consider Annual Report from the Urban Renewal Agency pursuant to Idaho 

Code 50-2006(c).   
 

7. SEWER (action Item) [attachment]- Consider approval of recommended grant administration firm for lift 
station 5 ICDBG grant administration. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/176727634


 MINUTES 
 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

February 20, 2024 
6:00 pm 

 
 

Mayor Alonzo called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. Council present were Val Thompson, Adam Arthur, Brion 
Poston. 
 
Staff present were City Engineer/Administrator Mike Klaus, City Attorney Andrakay Pluid, Police Chief Brian 
Zimmerman, Planner Clare Marley via Zoom, Clerk/ Treasurer Deborah Garcia, Sergeant Willie Cowell,  
 
Public present were Gerald Higgs, Jessica Tingley, George Hopkins, Maraciavee Cossette, Emily Bonsant, David 
Clark, Fay Almond 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Gerald Higgs Spoke about his complaint that he made to the city. 
 
George Hopkins spoke about the problem with turkeys in the city limits. 
 
 
REPORTS 
 
Police- Thanked the council for their support over the last few years. Brian is happy with the staff he has currently 
in the Police Department. 
  
Fire- No report 
 
City Engineer/Administrator- Mike talked about how we have been tracking the revenue and expenses. There is a 
lag in the Electric Dept. At the beginning of the fiscal year a 7% increase was suggested, but council only wanted 
to do 5%. In the winter the electric expenses go higher. Mike went through the current BPA billing statement. The 
big changes happened with our tier 2 power. It has doubled. We have produced 3.2 megawatts in December and 
January, which is higher than normal for our production. Next year we could see $100,000.00 for tier 2 power. 
 
 Mike went through the cash position of the utilities.  
 
 Mike said the Street department pointed out some trees that are dying at the intersection by the Georgia Mae 
Plaza. They are looking to replace them with shrubs or a tree that leaves enough sight distance for pedestrians. 
 
 At the top of unit 1 there is a thrust bearing that failed. It will be re-poured and replaced. This is not a cost to the 
city. The project will stay at $375,000.00. 
 
Selenium levels have been rising in the river due to coal mining that is happening in Canada above Elk River near 
Fernie. There is a problem with fish in the Kootenai River ingesting selenium and this caused the fish to not be 
able to reproduce. The city would in the future have to treat the drinking water sources to remove it. Mike will be 
getting more information tomorrow at the meeting and will probably be coming to council requesting a letter to the 
EPA and Legislators in Idaho that would help bring more attention to this issue. 
 
Urban Renewal District- No report 
 
SPOT-No report 
 
Golf- Ben and Jennifer would like to thank Julie Williams and Ralph Lotspeich for their help with the transfer of 
Mirror Lake Golf Course. Ben and Jennifer participated the PGA show in Spokane last weekend and about 5,000 



to 8,000 people came through there is two days and they handed out about 1,200 to 1,500 pamphlets that are 
good for 20% off at the golf course and they are wanting to see how many come back this year.  They have been 
planning all the tournaments for this year. They are almost ready for the season. Ben said that they shared a 
booth with PGA Professional Mike Dupree and there was a lot of good feedback. Mike Dupree will do lessons. 
Ralph may be willing to do some lessons when he is in town as well.  
 
EDC-No report 
 
CONSENT AGENDA – {action item} 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
2. Approval of Bills and Payroll 
 
 Brion Poston made the motion to approve the consent agenda. Adam Arthur seconded the motion.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
3. PLANNING {action Item} [attachment]- A resolution to amend the city of Bonners Ferry comprehensive plan 

future land use map to correct the previous resolution designating certain lands as “general commercial and 
mixed use” upon annexation into the incorporated city limits.  This land is associated with Annexation File 06-
23. 

Brion Poston recused himself. This creates a quorum issue, and this will have to be tabled until next 
time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
4. CITY {action Item} [attachment]- Consider suspension of rules and adopt ordinance #616, by Title only and 

authorize publication of the ordinance summary. Consider Ordinance #616, correcting Ordinance #612, 
annexing certain lands into city limits and zoning such lands commercial and Residential B on the official 
zoning map, for first reading by title only. 
 

This item will have to be tabled as it goes with #3 and there is not a quorum to vote on this. 
 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Brion Poston 
Seconded by Adam Arthur 
Voted Yes Adam Arthur, Val Thompson, Brion Poston 
Voted No  
Absent Ron Smith 

Result: Tabled 
Moved by: 

 

Seconded by 
 

Voted Yes 
 

Voted No  
Absent  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
5. ELECTRIC {action Item} [attachment]- Consider Contract Amendment with HDR to complete FERC 

Regulatory Work Related to the Supplementary Tech. Information Document. 
 
Part 12 inspection that has to be done by a certified inspector by FERC. HDR was the consultant that the city 
hired in 2022. There is other follow-up documentation that FERC wanted. The request is for an additional 
$10,000.00 to the original contract. Mike said that they would keep all of the original provisions of the original 
contract. This additional amount may not be needed but will give staff the ability to call the consultant and talk with 
them and have them do work on our behalf up to that amount. 
 
Adam Arthur made the motion to consider the contract amendment with HDR to complete FERC Regulatory Work 
Related to the Supplementary Tech. Information Document and increase the contract $10,000.00 to $59,900.00. 
Val Thompson seconded the motion.  
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6. STREET {action item} [Attachment]- Consider approval of Road Scholar increase for Dawson Brod of 

$0.50/hour. 
 
Mike explained that Dawson passed the Road Scholar with the Local Highway Technical Assistance Council. 
They help train street employees across the state. All of our Street employees have reached this milestone early 
in their career. And the LHTAC would like to have an award ceremony and present Dawson with a certificate at a 
future Council meeting. Historically the city has given a $0.50 per hour increase in pay for achieving this.  
 
Val Thompson made a motion to increase Dawson Brod’s pay by $0.50 per hour based on the Road Scholar 
Achievement. Brion Poston seconded the motion. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Result: Tabled 
Moved by: 

 

Seconded by 
 

Voted Yes 
 

Voted No  
Absent  

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Adam Arthur 
Seconded by Val Thompson 
Voted Yes Brion Poston, Val Thompson, Adam Arthur 
Voted No  
Absent Ron Smith 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Val Thompson 
Seconded by Brion Poston 
Voted Yes Adam Arthur, Val Thompson, Brion Poston 
Voted No  
Absent Ron Smith 



7. POOL {Action item} [attachment]- Discussion regarding the hire of an Assistant Pool Manager. 
 
Mike had a conversation with David Hatch and he is not interested in working full time anymore. The thought is to 
train an assistant pool manager and the hope is this will decrease Davids’s hours this year and that person will 
become the Pool Manager after this year. The model that was put together by the previous administration worked 
very well. Mike said that a lot of the success of the pool has been from having a pool manager to handle all the 
things. David is a certified trainer, and the hope is that he will still be interested in providing the training to the 
lifeguards.  
Mike does not have any numbers at this time he was just hoping to see if council agreed to the model and to carry 
it forward. David recommended the range for this position be $15.00 to $17.00 per hour as he feels we would not 
get a good candidate for less. 
 
This will be tabled until the next meeting. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

8. POLICE [Attachment]- Consider promoting William Cowell to Police Chief effective March 1, 2024.  
 
Chief Zimmerman is retiring at the end of the month and Mayor Alonzo would like to appoint William Cowell to 
Police Chief effective March 1st. Mayor Alonzo spoke about how the city had four Police Chiefs and three interim 
Police Chiefs in the span of about six years before Brian Zimmerman came on. Willie has been with the City 
Police Department for about 13 years, and he knows the department and the community. Mayor Alonzo feels he 
will do an outstanding job. There cannot be a vote tonight due to a clerical issue on the agenda. This item will be 
presented at a future meeting. 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

Mayor Alonzo adjourned the meeting at 6:46 pm. 

Result: Tabled 
Moved by: 

 

Seconded by 
 

Voted Yes 
 

Voted No  
Absent  



SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Minutes 

February 22, 2024 
 

Mayor Alonzo called the Special meeting to order at 5:14 pm. Council present were Val Thompson, Ron Smith, 
Adam Arthur. Brion Poston was absent. 
 
Staff present were City Engineer/Administrator Mike Klaus, City Attorney Andrakay Pluid, Clerk/Treasurer 
Deborah Garcia, City Planner Clare Marley. 
 
No public were present. 
 
  
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
1. PLANNING {action Item} [attachment]- A resolution to amend the city of Bonners Ferry comprehensive plan 

future land use map to correct the previous resolution designating certain lands as “general commercial and 
mixed use” upon annexation into the incorporated city limits.  This land is associated with Annexation File 06-
23. 

Contract Planner Clare Marley informed the Council that there are three documents that go with this 
proposal. The resolution, the Ordinance, and the Ordinance Summary and these all relate to some 
mapping issues that came up with respect to what is known as the Wendel Road Annexation or 
Annexation West. The city approved that last summer in 2023. The documents were pre-reviewed first 
by the state tax commission and then they came to you and then were recorded. There were a couple of 
errors that occurred in that. Clare showed council the map and explained what went wrong with it. Clare 
explained that there was a tail of Wendel road that stuck out further than the rest of the road and it had 
not been mapped by the county yet and that was caught by the County Assessor who pointed out that 
should have been included. It was included in the description and was lawfully considered and lawfully 
noticed within that. The attachment that we had to that document reflected that, but it didn’t map it. 
There was a slight error in the fact that the part of the highway needed to come all the way up to the top 
of the section and it didn’t, it was just short of it. The State Tax Commission was ok with that because 
they could depend on the legal description but would prefer the city to clean it up and that is what we are 
here to do. In addition, there was one error in the recording in that all the documents said “as attached” 
and none of them were. We need to attach those. Clare said we could still go back to those documents to 
reference those descriptions, but they were not attached. The proposal was reviewed by the city attorney, 
and they would be considered Scrivener errors meaning they were mapping errors that didn’t in essence 
affect the fact that you had already annexed these. The only difference is that these weren’t cleared yet 
and the State Tax Commission will not accept this until the new tax year at the end of this year. There 
are not great consequences of this because there are no planned developments as of yet and part of the 
land is US Forest Service which we do not collect taxes on nor do we on the Public Rights of Way. 
Mainly the properties that would be affected are known as the Poston Properties and they will not start 
taxing those as city taxes until next year. Clare said the process is that we are going to ask that these be 
re-adopted so that all of those are corrected and then we will re-record that and then provide those to the 
state. Clare stated that the County Assessor as well as the State Tax Commission have reviewed this 
document as well as the City Attorney and so we are ready to go on those. 

Val Thompson made a motion to approve Resolution # 2024-017, correcting the City of Bonners Ferry 
Resolution # 2023-014 amending the City of Bonners Ferry comprehensive plan future land use map to 



designate the lands described in File #AN06-23 as “General Commercial & Mixed Use”. Adam Arthur 
seconded the motion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2. CITY {action Item} [attachment]- Consider suspension of rules and adopt ordinance #616, by Title only and 

authorize publication of the ordinance summary. Consider Ordinance #616, correcting Ordinance #612, 
annexing certain lands into city limits and zoning such lands commercial and Residential B on the official 
zoning map, for first reading by title only. 

 
 
 

Ron Smith made a motion to approve Ordinance #616, regarding corrections to the City of Bonners Ferry 
Ordinance #612, annexing and zoning certain lands that are the subject of File #AN06-23, for the first and 
only reading by title only.  Val Thompson seconded the motion. 
 
City Attorney Andrakay Pluid read the Ordinance by title only. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

READING OF THE ORDINANCE BY TITLE ALONE: 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BONNERS FERRY, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF IDAHO, 
CORRECTING MAPPING ILLUSTRATIONS AND ATTACHING LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS FOR SUBJECT LANDS FOR 
ORDINANCE #612, RECORDED AT INSTRUMENT #295000, RECORDS OF BOUNDARY COUNTY, REGARDING THE 
ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN LANDS SITUATED IN BOUNDARY COUNTY, IDAHO, WHICH ARE ADJACENT AND 
CONTIGUOUS TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF BONNERS FERRY; ESTABLISHING THE ZONING 
CLASSIFICATION OF SAID LANDS AS COMMERCIAL IN PART AND RESIDENTIAL B IN PART;  PROVIDING THAT COPIES 
OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE FILED WITH THE BOUNDARY COUNTY ASSESSOR, THE BOUNDARY COUNTY 
RECORDER, AND THE IDAHO STATE TAX COMMISSION, AS REQUIRED BY LAW; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Val Thompson 
Seconded by Adam Arthur 
Voted Yes Ron Smith, Adam Arthur, Val Thompson 
Voted No  
Absent Brion Poston 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Ron Smith 
Seconded by Val Thompson 
Voted Yes Ron Smith, Adam Arthur, Val Thompson 
Voted No  
Absent Brion Poston 



PROVIDING THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, APPROVAL 
AND PUBLICATION ACCORDING TO LAW. 
 
Adam Arthur made a motion to affirm the Ordinance that has been read by title only.  Val Thompson seconded 
the motion. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

3. POLICE {action item}- Consider Appointing William Cowell to Police Chief effective March 1, 2024.  
 
Mayor Alonzo reviewed what he said last meeting that Brian Zimmerman was retiring as of 02/29/2024. There is 
not another council meeting until March 5th. Mayor Alonzo would like to have prior approval from the council to 
appoint William Cowell to Police Chief effective March 1, 2024 if council agrees. 
 
Ron Smith made a motion to affirm the Appointing William Cowell to Police Chief effective March 1, 2024. 
 Val Thompson seconded the motion. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

521 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Ron Smith 
Seconded by Val Thompson 
Voted Yes Ron Smith, Adam Arthur, Val Thompson 
Voted No  
Absent Brion Poston 

Result: Approved 
Moved by: Ron Smith 
Seconded by Val Thompson 
Voted Yes Ron Smith, Adam Arthur, Val Thompson  
Voted No  
Absent Brion Poston 



MEMO 
CITY OF BONNERS FERRY 

CITY ENGINEER/ADMINISTRATOR 

 

TO:    Mayor and City Council   

FROM:   Mike Klaus, PE, City Engineer/Administrator  

DATE:  March 1, 2024 

RE:    Electric – Dam Relicensing Contract Time Extension with HDR 

 

In 2023, the City entered a contract with HDR Engineering to complete work directly related to 

the relicensing of our dam.  I had accidentally put in a completion date in the contract of May 31, 

2024, which was a mistake on my part, as a reasonable contract date for this project should be 

December 31, 2024.  With this memo I am requesting that Council approve changing the 

completion date of the attached contract to December 31, 2024 

 

Thank you, 

 

Mike      

 

























CITY OF BONNERS FERRY 

7232 Main Street  

P.O. Box 149 

Bonners Ferry, Idaho  83805 

Phone: 208-267-3105  Fax: 208-267-4375 

 

 

 
  
March 5, 2024 

 

 

Dennis Porter, Manager 

Idaho Department of Commerce 

PO Box 83720 

Boise, ID 83720-0093 

 

RE: Addendum – City of Bonners Ferry Lift Station #5 Replacement Project 

 

Dear Mr. Porter: 

 

Thank you for the invitation to submit an addendum for the city’s Lift Station #5 Replacement 

Project. Funding of this project will be instrumental in removing the existing lift station, which 

has significant deterioration and numerous problems that have caused documented sanitary 

sewer overflows and construction of a new lift station. Given the array of deficiencies outlined in 

our engineering analysis, the installation of the new lift station is imperative to guarantee 

sufficient emergency storage and prevent any instances of overflow.  

 

This addendum addresses the items in your invitation letter dated February 1, 2024. The scope 

of work, budget, and cost estimates have not changed since submission of the full application 

on November 17, 2023. The date for execution of the grant administration contract has been 

revised to allow for procurement of administrative services. 

 

Again, thank you for your consideration of our CDBG request.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Rick Alonzo 

Mayor 

 

Cc:   Jeremy Grimm, Region I EAC Member 

 Eve Knudtson, EAC Ad Hoc Member 

    



  

ADDENDUM

 
 
 

Lift Station #5 

Replacement 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MARCH 11, 2024



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
March xx, 2024 

 

 

Dennis Porter, Manager 

Idaho Department of Commerce 

PO Box 83720 

Boise, ID 83720-0093 

 

RE: Addendum – City of Bonners Ferry Lift Station #5 Replacement Project 

 

Dear Mr. Porter: 

 

Thank you for the invitation to submit an addendum for the city’s Lift Station #5 Replacement 

Project. Funding of this project will be instrumental in removing the existing lift station and 

construction of a new lift station, which has significant deterioration and numerous problems that 

have caused documented sanitary sewer overflows. Given the array of deficiencies outlined in 

our engineering analysis, the installation of the new lift station is imperative to guarantee 

sufficient emergency storage and prevent any instances of overflow.  

 

This addendum addresses the items in your invitation letter dated February 1, 2024. The scope 

of work, budget, and cost estimates have not changed since submission of the full application 

on November 17, 2023. The date for execution of the grant administration contract has been 

revised to allow for procurement of administrative services. 

 

Again, thank you for your consideration of our CDBG request.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Rick Alonzo 

Mayor 

 

Cc:   Jeremy Grimm, Region I EAC Member 

 Eve Knudtson, EAC Ad Hoc Member 

 



 

Table of Contents 

 
 

Cover Letter Questions ............................................................................................................................. 1 

ICDBG Application Information Page ...................................................................................................... 2 

Idaho Community Development Block Grant Budget Form................................................................. 3 

Economic Advisory Council ...................................................................................................................... 4 

Project Schedule ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

Design Professional Cost Estimate ......................................................................................................... 5 

Match Commitments .................................................................................................................................. 5 

Ownership and Title ................................................................................................................................... 5 

Fair Housing Resolution ............................................................................................................................ 6 

Audit ............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

 

  



Addendum – Bonners Ferry Lift Station #5 Replacement  P a g e  | 1 

 

Cover Letter Questions 
 

➢ Ensure your project’s cost estimate includes CDBG’s Build America Buy 
America requirements.  If your project is funded, CDBG funding will require all 
the iron and steel used in the project to be produced in the United States. 

 
The cost estimate includes allowance of requirements for the American Iron and 
Steel Institute. 

 
 

➢ Provide design professional and grant administration procurement information if 
available. 

 
The city solicited Requests for Proposals from four firms certified in ICDBG 
administration on February 12, 2024.  Xxx was selected March 5, 2024, for 
administrative services for the project. The procurement documents are attached. 

 

  



Addendum – Bonners Ferry Lift Station #5 Replacement  P a g e  | 2 

 

ICDBG Application Information Page 
 
Applicant:   City of Bonners Ferry    Chief Elected Official:   Rick Alonzo, Mayor  
     Address:   7232 Main Street, PO Box 149, Bonners Ferry, ID 83805 Phone:   208-267-3105  
     Email Address:  ralonzo@bonnersferry.id.gov        
     Unique Entity Identification (UEI) #:  PUNSPFWLBZZ6      
  
Subrecipient (if applicable):    N/A        
 
Application Prepared by:   Nancy Mabile, Regional Planner  Phone:   208-772-0584 x3014  
     Address:  Panhandle Area Council, 11100 N Airport Drive, Hayden, ID 83835    
 
Architect/Engineer/CM:   Ashley Williams, P.E.   Phone:   208-664-9382   
     Address:   Welch-Comer, 330 E Lakeside Ave., STE 101, Coeur d’Alene, ID 83814   

 

National Objective  Project Type  

  LMI Area   LMI Clientele   Post Disaster   Public Facility   Post Disaster 

  LMI Jobs   Slum & Blight   LMI Housing   Infrastructure for Jobs   Senior Center 

     Downtown Revitalization   Public Park 

     Community Center 

Project Population to Benefit (Persons): (Census/Survey/Jobs) 
Total # to Benefit:   2,420   Total # LMI to Benefit:    1,435  
% LMI to Benefit:   59.31 %   

 

Project Description:  The proposed project includes construction of a new lift station #5 on a 
nearby site to replace the existing, deteriorating lift station. New construction includes a new 14’ 
deep Wet Well with a Triplex Pump System and a new 10’ diameter x 12’ deep overflow basin, 
installation of a new manhole for NE gravity sewer main, extend the 6” force main to tie into existing 
force main, relocate emergency generator and propane tank to serve new lift station, and abandon 
and demolish existing manhole and lift station facilities. 

SOURCE AMOUNT 

FUNDS COMMITTED/ 

CONTRACT AWARD 

DATE 

DOCUMENTS IN 

APPENDIX ** 

ICDBG $  500,000 TBD  

Local Cash 726,400 11/07/2023 D 

Local Loan*    

Local In-Kind**    

UDSA-RD Grant    

State Grant    

Foundation Grant    

Private Investment    

Other (identify)    

TOTAL PROJECT 

FINANCING 

 

$1,226,400 

  

* Identify Loan Source(s):  N/A   Date Bond or Necessary & Ordinary Passed:  N/A  

** Identify which appendix corresponding documentation is in.  Documentation should be a letter from the appropriate 
source. 

mailto:ralonzo@bonnersferry.id.gov


Addendum – Bonners Ferry Lift Station #5 Replacement  P a g e  | 3 

 

Idaho Community Development Block Grant Budget Form 
 

Applicant or Grantee:  City of Bonners Ferry Project Name: Lift Station #5 Replacement 
 

Line Items ICDBG CITY Total 

Planning      $                -    

Facilities Plan                      -    

Administration    $       50,000        50,000  

Design Professional         248,000       248,000  

Acquisition                     -    

Soft Cost                      -    

Construction  $     500,000        423,400     923,400  

Materials/Equipment                     -    

Financing Expenses                      -    

Bond Counsel                     -    

Legal             5,000          5,000  

Property Value                      -    

TOTAL COSTS  $     500,000   $     726,400   $ 1,226,400  

  



Addendum – Bonners Ferry Lift Station #5 Replacement  P a g e  | 4 

 

 

Economic Advisory Council 
 

The City of Bonners Ferry owns, operates, and  
maintains the Bonners Ferry Wastewater Collection, Treatment, and Disposal System. The city has 
expanded the system as the size of the town and population has grown, but due to age and 
deterioration, the need for repairs and improvements have only become more apparent. There are 
eight lift stations, and of these, lift station #5 is in the direst need of replacement due to its age, 
significant deterioration, and location deficiencies. The city estimates that the lift station is about 52 
years old and has numerous problems such as continual build-up of oils, grease, fats and refuse in 
the wet well that have caused 8 documented sanitary sewer overflows within the past ten years. 
There is a surge tank to catch overflows, but the city’s maintenance employees must continually 
clean out the wet well with a large truck 6-7 times per year. The increase in the volume of sewage 
over time has caused the station pumps to burn out quickly.  
 
Not only is lift station #5 in need of replacement, but its location leaves much to be desired. 
Currently, it sits on BNSF Railroad property near the railway line. Emergencies at the lift station in 
the winter require the city to coordinate with BNSF to request snowplowing to the location. When city 
crews must clean the wet well, their nearly 40’ vacuum/flusher truck is extremely difficult to 
maneuver, with little to no room to turn around or back up.   
 
The future demands of the sewer system will exceed what can currently be handled by lift station #5, 
which now lifts more sewage than any other lift station on the system. Lift stations #6, #7, and #8 
deliver wastewater to #5 to be pumped directly to the system’s treatment lagoons. Between the size 
of the land area that lift station #5 serves and the fact that two of Boundary County’s public schools, 
seven large businesses and an additional 33 businesses, plus federal, state, and county facilities, 
not to mention 360 households also rely upon the service of this lift station, the need for its relocation 
and replacement is becoming critical. 
 
Lift station #5 is not in compliance with three rules under the Idaho Administrative Rules (IDAPA) for 
Wastewater Systems. Construction of a new lift station will ensure that the city has the capacity to 
support the projected growth, have adequate emergency storage to prevent potential flooding of the 
railroad, ensure that wastewater will not overflow with the increased demand, and be constructed in 
compliance with the IDAPA. The improved site will provide enhanced access for the city’s vacuum/ 
flusher truck that is critical to ensuring reliable lift station operations during emergencies, or during 
routine cleaning and maintenance.  
 
Boundary County’s August 2023 revised unemployment rate was 4.8%, which is 1.8 points higher 
than the State of Idaho’s 3.0%. Those that are considered below the poverty level in the City of 
Bonners Ferry are over 20% of the population. An income survey was completed in October 2019 
that encompassed Bonners Ferry city limits as well as individuals living in Boundary County that are 
served by the city’s wastewater system determined that the users 59.31% LMI.  
 
Low and moderate-income populations need basic and quality services without worry of personal 

health and safety threats.  This project will help in providing the LMI population of Bonners Ferry, 

thereby reducing the threat of sewer overflows. Bonners Ferry has seen both residential and 

business growth in recent years, and that growth needs to continue to provide economic 

opportunities for the LMI population.  This application for a $500,000 grant will eliminate these 

problems for 2,420 persons, of whom 59.31% meet LMI standards. The City of Bonners Ferry has 

committed to providing $726,000 in matching funds to help finance this project. 



Addendum – Bonners Ferry Lift Station #5 Replacement  P a g e  | 5 

 

Project Schedule 
 

Project Activity 
Date (to be) 

Completed 

Documentation in 

Appendix 

Design Professional Contract Executed December 2023  

Grant Administration Contract Executed March 2024  

Environmental Release August 2024  

Bid Document Approval July 2024  

Bid Opening September 2024  

Construction Contract Executed November 2024  

Start Construction April 2025  

Construction 50% complete July 2025  

Second Public Hearing July 2025  

Certificate of Substantial Completion October 2025  

Update Fair Housing Plan January 2025 Resolution: C 

Update 504 Review and Transition Plan January 2025  

LEP Four Factor Analysis January 2025  

Construction 100% Complete December 2025  

Final Closeout March 2026  

 

 

Design Professional Cost Estimate 
 
There are no updates to the Design Professional Opinion of Probable Construction Cost since the 
full application submitted November 17, 2023.  

 

Match Commitments 
 
There are no updates to the City’s match commitment since the full application submitted November 
17, 2023.  
 
 

Ownership and Title 
 
Not applicable to this project. 
 
 



Addendum – Bonners Ferry Lift Station #5 Replacement  P a g e  | 6 

 

Fair Housing Resolution 
 

The city adopted Fair Housing Resolution #2019-04-16 on April 16, 2019. It was included in 
Appendix C of the full application dated November 17, 2023.   
 
 

Audit 
 

The last audit completed for the city was for fiscal year 2020. The city currently has auditors 
working under contract to complete the 2021 audited financials for the city, with the audit of the 
2002 financials to begin directly after the 2021 work is complete. While the audits are not 
complete for 2021 or 2022, the cash position of the sewer department is accurately known, with 
sufficient funds to operate and maintain the system, retain ninety days of operating reserve, and 
support a capital plan which includes the proposed lift station replacement. 
 
 
 











MEMO 
CITY OF BONNERS FERRY 

CITY ENGINEER/ADMINISTRATOR 

 

TO:    Mayor and City Council   

FROM:   Mike Klaus, PE, City Engineer/Administrator  

DATE:  March 1, 2024 

RE:    Sewer – Selection of Grant Administration Firm for Lift Station #5 Project 

In February 2024, the City requested proposals from three grant administration firms for work 

related to the grant administration services for Lift Station #5.  On February 23, 2024, a selection 

committee that consisted of Mayor Alonzo, Clerk Garcia, and me, reviewed the only proposal 

received by Panhandle Area Council (PAC).  Below is a summary of the discussion points and 

comments of the selection committee: 

- Only one firm submitted a proposal- PAC. 

- The committee discussed the single proposal received and recognized that PAC was 

highly qualified in all the rated categories that included, capability, relevant project 

experience, team qualifications, and project approach and schedule.   

- The committee felt that there were no reasons to go to interviews, since there was one 

qualified candidate, and we had significant successful experience with that candidate. 

- It was discussed that PAC was successful in helping the City procure a grant for the 

sewer bridge project a few years ago, and performed all of the administrative functions 

very well. 

- Following are some of the specific comments from the committee: 

o “Great organization to deal with!” 

o  “Great, effective team with amazing results” 

o   “Nice staff, always a positive interaction with knowledgeable people” 

The selection committee recommends to City Council that it select Panhandle Area Council as 

the grant administrator for the City’s Lift Station #5 project.  

Thank you, 

 

 


	1.0_3-5-24 Regular Council Agenda
	3.0_2-20-24 Council Minutes
	3.1_2-22-24 Special Council Minutes
	4.0 - HDR Relicensing Date Extension (3-1-2024)
	4.1 HDR Contract
	5.0 ICDBG Addendum Cover Letter (3-5-2024)
	5.1_2024 bf addendum draft
	6.1_BFURA Annual Report
	7.0 - Grant Admin Selection (3-1-2024)

